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	Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission,
Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement

		v.

Vista Energy Marketing, L.P.

	
	  M-2018-2624484


	

OPINION AND ORDER


BY THE COMMISSION:

		Before the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission (Commission) for consideration and disposition is the Settlement Agreement (Settlement) filed on November 29, 2018, by the Commission’s Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement (I&E) and Vista Energy Marketing, L.P. (Vista or Company) [footnoteRef:1] (collectively, the Parties) with respect to an Informal Investigation conducted by I&E.  Both Parties submitted Statements in Support of the Settlement.  The Parties submit that the proposed Settlement is in the public interest and is consistent with the Commission’s Policy Statement at 52 Pa. Code § 69.1201, Factors and standards for evaluating litigated and settled proceedings involving violations of the Public Utility Code and Commission regulations—statement of policy.  Settlement at 13.  We will issue the Settlement for comment. [1: 	Vista is an electric generation supplier (EGS) licensed by the Commission to operate in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.  Vista received its Pennsylvania EGS license on December 22, 2016, at Docket No. A-2016-2569804.] 


History of the Proceeding

[bookmark: _Hlk534395428]This matter involves an informal investigation initiated by I&E, consistent with Sections 331(a) and 506 of the Public Utility Code (the Code), 66 Pa. C.S. §§ 331(a) and 506, and Section 3.113 of the Commission’s Regulations, 52 Pa. Code § 3.113.  The informal investigation focused on allegations that Vista failed to comply with the Marketing and Sales Practices for the Retail Residential Energy Market[footnoteRef:2] by allowing an agent of a third-party vendor, Platinum Advertising II LLC (Platinum),[footnoteRef:3] to engage in door-to-door marketing without a proper criminal background investigation being first conducted. [2: 		52 Pa. Code §§ 111.1-111.14.]  [3: 		Platinum is a third-party vendor authorized to hire and train sales agents to market/sell electric generation services on behalf of Vista.] 


The Office of Competitive Market Oversight (OCMO) learned about the suspected agent through a local news story and I&E determined that the information warranted that a further investigation should be conducted to examine whether the criminal background investigation practices of Vista or its third-party vendor, Platinum, violated any Commission regulations or orders.  Settlement at 4.  The news story reported that police charged a local twenty-three-year-old man with rape and indecent assault of a young woman after he told them that he was “working for Platinum Advertising going door-to-door trying to convince homeowners to change their energy company.”

As part of the investigation, the Parties entered into negotiations and agreed to resolve the matter in accordance with the Commission’s policy to promote settlements at 52 Pa. Code § 5.231.  As a result of those negotiations, the Parties filed the instant Settlement on November 29, 2018.

Background

On August 30, 2017, a local television station posted an article to is website which reported that a local twenty-three-year-old man “was charged last week by Bensalem police with rape and indecent assault of a young woman.”  Settlement at 4.  The report stated that the suspect told officers that “he was working for Platinum Advertising going door-to-door trying to convince homeowners to change their energy company.”  Id.  The suspect was not working nor was he engaged in work-related activities when the incident occurred.  Id.  It was also reported in the article that the suspect previously pleaded guilty to the following offenses:  aggravated assault in 2015; providing false identification to a law enforcement officer in 2014; and criminal trespass and break-in in 2013.  Id.

After learning of the article, OCMO contacted Platinum to inquire whether or not the information in the story was correct.  Platinum informed OCMO that the suspect was an independent contractor of Platinum who was selling electric generation services on behalf of Vista.  Id.  Platinum claimed that it had initiated a criminal background check on the suspect on March 23, 2017; however, due to a “clerical error” it issued an ID and work as an agent in the field marketing/selling electrical generation services on behalf of Vista.  Id. at 5.  Platinum also claimed that on April 14, 2017, it became aware of the suspect’s criminal past and immediately terminated its relationship with him upon conducting a regular audit.  Platinum also stated that the suspect later reapplied as an independent contractor at another sales office under an assumed name and again began selling electric generation services on behalf of Vista from May 15, 2017 to August 18, 2017.  After the local television station posted its story about the rogue agent Platinum again terminated its relationship with him.  Id.

OCMO referred the matter to I&E which initiated an informal investigation into whether Platinum’s criminal background investigation practices were in compliance with Section 111.4 of the Commission regulations.  As a result of its investigation, I&E determined that Platinum had entered into a contract with Vista as a third-party vendor to hire and train sales agents to market electric generation services on behalf of Vista, and , as such, was an agent of Vista, a licensed EGS in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.[footnoteRef:4]  Consequently, I&E also conducted a separate but simultaneous investigation of Vista’s criminal background investigation practices.  Id. at 5. [4:   	“A licensee is responsible for any fraudulent, deceptive or other unlawful marketing or billing acts performed by the licensee, its employees, agents or representatives.”  52 Pa. Code § 54.43(f); See also 52 Pa. Code § 111.3.] 


I&E alleges that Vista failed to comply with Sections 111.1 – 111.14 of the Commission’s regulations pertaining to the Marketing and Sales Practices for the Retail Residential Energy Market in that it:  (1) conditionally approved agents to sell EGS services on its behalf while their Pennsylvania Access to Criminal History (PATCH) reports were pending; (2) permitted the alleged suspect to sell EGS services on its behalf while his PATCH report was pending, during which time the alleged suspect made approximately one hundred and nine sales attempts, but only enrolled forty residential customers; (3) conditionally approved another agent whose completed PATCH report revealed that a prior conviction should have precluded him from selling EGS services on its behalf; and (4) conditionally approved another one hundred and twenty-two agents to sell EGS services in its behalf while their PATCH  reports were pending.  I&E Statement in Support at 5-6.

Through its investigation and multiple data requests to both Platinum and Vista, I&E concluded that it was not “clerical error,” as alleged by Platinum, that allowed the suspect to be issued an ID and to work as an agent in the field.  Id. at 6; I&E Statement in Support at 3-4.  On or around March 8, 2017, through on or around April 18, 2017, Vista, at Platinum’s request, agreed to allow some door-to-door marketers, including the alleged suspect, to be conditionally approved while their Pennsylvania Access to Criminal History (PATCH) reports were pending.  Id.  On April 18, 2017, Vista informed Platinum that it would no longer conditionally approve any more agents until their PATCH reports were received and cleared.  Id; I&E Statement in Support at 4.  As part of its investigation, I&E concluded that: (1) a total of one hundred and twenty-four agents were conditionally approved to sell EGS services on behalf of Vista pending the results of their PACTH reports; (2) once the PATCH reports were received, Vista terminated two agents, including the alleged suspect, due to the results of their PATCH reports; (3) the alleged suspect was permitted to sell EGS services for Vista from March 23, 2017 to April 19, 2017 and made one hundred and nine sales attempts but only enrolled forty residential customers; and (4) the other agent, who  was later terminated after Vista received and reviewed the PATCH report, sold EGS services from April 21, 2017 to April 27, 2017[footnoteRef:5].  Id.  On or about August 31, 2017, Vista terminated its relationship with Platinum due to its concerns that only agents with clear criminal background checks be allowed to sell EGS services on its behalf upon learning about the incident involving the alleged suspect.  Id at 7; I&E Statement in Support at 4. [5:  	I&E was unable to determine whether this agent made any sales attempts or to quantify the sales attempts made by the rest of the one hundred and twenty-two agents who were also conditionally approved before their PATCH reports were received and cleared by Platinum and Vista.  Id at 7.] 


At the end of its investigation, I&E was prepared to allege in a formal complaint that:

a.	Vista failed to comply with the Marketing and Sales Practices for the Retail Residential Energy Market, 52 Pa. Code §§ 111.1-111.14, in that it conditionally approved agents to sell EGS services on its behalf while their PATCH reports were pending. More specifically, Vista permitted the suspect to sell EGS services on its behalf while his PATCH report was pending, during which time the suspect made approximately one hundred and nine (109) sales attempts and enrolled forty (40) residential customers.  Additionally, it conditionally approved another agent whose completed PATCH report revealed that a prior conviction should have precluded him from selling EGS services on its behalf. Finally, it conditionally approved another one hundred and twenty-two agents (122) to sell EGS services on its behalf while their PATCH reports were pending.

b.	If proven, this would have violated 52 Pa. Code § 111.4(b).


Settlement at 7-8.

	Vista understands the nature of the allegations that I&E would have asserted in a formal complaint, acknowledges its error in conditionally approving agents to sell EGS services on its behalf while their PATCH reports were pending and has put into effect appropriate measures that have been approved by I&E to ensure that such oversight is not likely to reoccur.  Settlement at 8.

I&E acknowledges that Vista fully cooperated with I&E’s investigation and promptly complied with I&E’s requests for information and documentation and provided I&E with records, correspondences, and other documents as requested by I&E.  Settlement at 8; I&E Statement in Support at 5.  Moreover, throughout the entire investigatory process, I&E and Vista remained active in communications and informal discovery and continued to explore the possibility of resolving this investigation.  Settlement at 8.

Additionally, per the Settlement, Vista (1) understands the nature of the allegations that I&E would have asserted in a formal complaint; (2) acknowledges its error in conditionally approving agents to sell EGS services on its behalf while their PATCH reports were pending; and (3) has put into effect appropriate measures that have been approved by I&E to ensure that such oversight is not likely to reoccur.  Id.  Vista stated that it is committed to ensuring compliance with all regulatory requirements and is committed to upholding high-standards for its marketing vendors.  Vista Statement in Support at 1.  Furthermore, it has taken steps to ensure that the circumstances that led to this investigation will not and cannot be repeated.  Id.

Terms of the Settlement

The Parties filed the proposed Settlement, which we have attached to this Opinion and Order, to terminate I&E’s informal investigation and to resolve this matter completely and without litigation.  The Parties urge the Commission to approve the Settlement as being in the public interest.

Pursuant to the proposed Settlement, Vista will pay a civil penalty of $37,500.  Settlement at 9-10.  The Settlement acknowledges that the Company has since taken corrective action and steps to ensure that the circumstances that led to the investigation will not and cannot happen again.  Vista modified its procedures to address this issue in the future.  The specific terms of the Settlement are as follows:
a.	Vista will pay a total civil penalty in the amount of thirty-seven thousand, five hundred dollars ($37,500) to resolve all alleged violations of Chapter 111 of the Commission’s regulations concerning agent criminal background investigations and to fully and finally settle all possible liability and claims of alleged violations of the Code and Commission regulations arising from, or related to, the conduct investigated herein. The civil penalty represents the following: (i) twenty-seven thousand, five hundred dollars ($27,500) for the approximately one hundred and nine (109) sales attempts made by the suspect who was conditionally approved to sell EGS services on Vista’s behalf while his PATCH reports were pending; (ii) one thousand dollars ($1,000) for the other agent who was conditionally approved to sell EGS services on behalf of Vista and who was also terminated once his PATCH report was received and reviewed; and (iii) nine thousand dollars ($9,000) for the rest of the one hundred and twenty-two (122) agents who were also conditionally approved to sell EGS services on behalf of Vista while their PATCH reports were pending. Said payment shall be made by certified check or money order payable to the “Commonwealth of Pennsylvania” and forwarded to the Commission through the prosecuting attorney within thirty (30) days after the Commission has entered a final order approving the Settlement Agreement. The civil penalty shall not be tax deductible under Section 162(f) of the Internal Revenue Code, 26 U.S.C.S. § 162(f).

b.	Vista has taken corrective action and is committed to diligently applying its policies, which will act as a safeguard against failing to comply with agent criminal background investigation requirements, pursuant to 52 Pa. Code § 111.4, Specifically, Vista has designed and implemented the following quality control measures, with I&E’s approval, to address this issue in the future:

i.	A commitment to cease granting conditional approval for agents to sell EGS services on Vista’s behalf while their PATCH reports are pending;

ii.	Revision to Vista’s sales and marketing policies and procedures, as well as revisions to any and all training materials to ensure that Vista and/or its agents strictly adhere to the criminal background investigation requirements of Section 111.4 of the Commission’s regulations, 52 Pa. Code § 111.4. The revisions specifically address the fact that agents may not be conditionally approved while their PATCH reports are pending; and

iii.	Train internal and external (if applicable) sales and marketing representatives on the revised sales and marketing training materials, as referenced above.

c.	In exchange for the action taken by Vista described above, I&E agrees not to institute any formal complaint or take any other action in the nature of enforcement before the Commission or in any other forum relating to Vista conditionally approving agents to sell EGS services on its behalf while their PATCH reports are pending with the Commission that is the subject of this Settlement Agreement. Nothing contained in this Settlement Agreement shall adversely affect the Commission’s authority to receive and resolve any informal or formal complaints filed by any affected party with respect to the incident, except that no penalties beyond the civil penalty amount agreed to herein may be imposed by the Commission for any actions identified herein.

d.	The terms and conditions in this Settlement Agreement cannot and shall not be used by any Party hereto and will not be introduced or admissible in any future proceeding, including, but not limited to, the Commission, the Pennsylvania court system, or the federal court system, relating to this or any other matter as proof of unlawful and/or improper behavior, or as an admission of unlawful and/or improper behavior by Vista.


Settlement at 9-12.

Additionally, the Parties indicate that the Settlement is conditioned on the Commission’s approval of the Settlement terms and conditions, without modification. The Parties reserve the right to withdraw from the Settlement if it is modified.  Id. at 14.

Further, the Parties agree that none of the provisions of the Settlement or the statements in support of the Settlement shall be considered an admission of any fact or culpability.  Id. at 14.  The Settlement is presented without any admission against or prejudice to any position that the Parties may have advanced in this proceeding.  Id. at 14.

Discussion

		Pursuant to our Regulations at 52 Pa. Code § 5.231, it is the Commission’s policy to promote settlements.  The Commission must, however, review proposed settlements to determine whether the terms are in the public interest.  Pa. PUC v. Philadelphia Gas Works, Docket No. M-00031768 (Order entered January 7, 2004).

Conclusion

Before issuing a decision on the merits of the proposed Settlement, and consistent with the requirement of 52 Pa. Code § 3.113(b)(3), we are providing an opportunity for interested parties to file comments regarding the proposed Settlement which is included as an attachment to this Opinion and Order; THEREFORE,

		IT IS ORDERED:

		1.	That this Opinion and Order, together with the attached Settlement Agreement and Statements in Support thereof, shall be issued for comments by any interested party.

		2.	That a copy of this Opinion and Order, together with the attached Settlement Agreement and the Statements in Support thereof, shall be served on the Office of Consumer Advocate and the Office of Small Business Advocate.

		3.	That within twenty (20) days from the date of entry of this Opinion and Order, interested parties may file comments concerning the proposed Settlement Agreement.  Comments to the proposed Settlement Agreement may be filed either through eFiling for those parties who have an eFiling user account with the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission or by paper copy.  Paper copies shall be filed with the Secretary’s Bureau at the following address:

			Rosemary Chiavetta, Secretary
			Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission
			Commonwealth Keystone Building
			400 North Street
			Harrisburg, PA, 17120


4.	That, subsequent to the Commission’s review of comments filed in this proceeding, an Opinion and Order will be issued.

[bookmark: _GoBack][image: ]							BY THE COMMISSION,




							Rosemary Chiavetta
							Secretary

(SEAL)

ORDER ADOPTED:  January 17, 2019

ORDER ENTERED:   January 17, 2019
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